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EN BANC

[ A.M. NO. 2007-09-SC, July 12, 2007 ]

RE: REPORT ON THE ALLEGED THEFT OF ELECTRICAL WIRES.

DECISION
NACHURA, J.:

This refers to the Memorandum!!! of Atty. Eden T. Candelaria, Deputy Clerk of Court
and Chief Administrative Officer, dated May 15, 2007, on the alleged theft of
electrical wires used as a feeder line for the spotlights along the perimeter of the
Court's Taft Avenue gate.

The first incident happened on September 27, 2006. At around 7:45 a.m., Leonardo
Yecla, Jr. of the Maintenance Division reported the loss of the electrical wires to John
Paul Salas, Watchman II, assighed at the employees' gate along Taft Avenue. Mr.
Salas reported the matter to the Assistant Shift In-charge (ASIC), Fernando G.

Lastica.[?2]

That day, Michael Fajardo, Security Guard I, was the guard assigned at the Taft-
Faura post for the first shift (6:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.). At around 6:00 a.m., he was
re-assigned by Mr. Lastica to the basketball court area in lieu of another guard who

was deployed as then Chief Justice Panganiban's security escort.[3] Mr. Fajardo re-
assumed the Taft-Faura post at about 9:05 a.m. In his end-of-duty report, Mr.
Fajardo reported that no untoward incident occurred during his watch. However, Mr.

Lastica recorded the alleged loss of electrical wires in the security Iogbook.[4]

Atty. Candelaria was informed of the loss by Mr. Bernardito Bundoc, Chief of the

Maintenance Division.[5] On the other hand, Mr. Danilo C. Pablo, Chief of the
Security Division, informed Atty. Candelaria that he had directed an investigation on

the matter.[®]

Upon investigation, the Assigned Investigator, Mr. Joselito Dominguiano, found that
about 20 meters of wires were cut off from the line connecting the spotlights at the
Taft Avenue gate. He also states that the night shift (10 p.m. to 6 a.m.) guard, Joel
Gregorio, noticed nothing unusual during his tour of duty, while the guard on duty
after him, Mr. Fajardo, was re-assigned to the basketball court area. He concluded
that the loss could have occurred at the time when the Taft-Faura post was
unmanned. He recommended that the Complaints and Investigation Division (CID),
OAS, conduct an investigation on the matter.

In a Memorandum!l”] dated April 19, 2007, Atty. Candelaria directed Mr. Fajardo to
explain why no disciplinary measures should be taken against him for failing to
report the alleged loss of the wire. Likewise, Mr. Lastica was asked to explain why he
re-assigned Mr. Fajardo without taking precautionary measures to keep the premises



secured.[8]

Mr. Fajardo explained that he only heard about the missing wire through
communications over the radio monitor. He also said that since Mr. Lastica already
recorded the loss in the logbook, he no longer included the same in his report as he

was not in the area at the time of the incident.[°] On the other hand, Mr. Lastica
said he re-assignhed Mr. Fajardo to the basketball court because the area was vital,
serving as it did as the reserve parking for VIPs. He said that the Taft-Faura post
was where they usually pulled out guards to augment other areas because that gate
is always locked and, at that time, there were already a lot of people near the area

who could notice unusual activities.[10]

The second incident allegedly took place on September 30, 2007. The report on the
missing wires was made by Mr. Eligio Del Mundo, first shift guard at the Taft-Faura
post that day. During the CID investigation, Mr. Del Mundo related the loss, thus:

A: Yes, ang area ng Tango 3 ay mula Taft cor. P. Faura
hanggang entrance gate ng Old Building. Diyan lang ako
nag -inspection. So ang findings ko that day, First ay ang
isang exhaust fan sa underground, Property. Second is the
wires. Naisip ko lang na baka iyun ang sinasabi nilang
naputol na wires. May isa akong nakita dun na putol na
wire. ([D]raw[s] the scene) This is my post at may tree,
may maliit na puno diyan ng mangga at may mga branches
siya. Ang napansin ko diyan within that way (Faura
papuntang entance gate, Old Building). Iyung sinasabi ng
araw na September 27, iyan iyun yellow wire. Siguro 27
meters ata iyan. Iyan yun nawawala but when I assumed
ng September 30 cut na yung yellow wire pero cut din ang

blue wire then may mga naka roll sa branches ng tree. [11]

On the other hand, Mr. Harold Cumpio, Over-all ASIC at the New Building on
September 30, 2006, narrated that, at around 4:15 p.m., he and several other
security personnel were directed by Mr. Pablo to proceed to the Old Building. There
they were instructed to remove electrical wires knocked down to the ground by

typhoon Milenyo.!12] Mr. Cumpio's statement was corroborated by Mr. Bernardo P.
Cajandig, the Shift In-Charge (SIC) for that day.[13]

On March 14, 2007, Atty. Candelaria directed Mr. Pablo to explain why he failed to
report the loss of the wire, as well as the loss of the logbook page containing the

report of this incident.[14]

In his Memorandum[!5] dated March 26, 2007, Mr. Pablo avers that none of the
guards on duty on September 30 noted any untoward incident in their reports for
that day. He relates that on October 5, 2006, he and Mr. Gelinico Abac conducted a
re-inventory of all court property within the perimeter fences along Padre Faura
Street and Taft Avenue, and the Centennial Building. When Mr. Pablo got the
logbooks from the various posts, it was discovered that the page containing the
reports of September 29 and 30, 2006, by Mssrs. Juan Espuerta and Del Mundo,
respectively, was missing from the Taft-Faura post logbook. Mr. Pablo immediately
called for the two. He then asked the two to restore the lost page in the logbook by
having them re-write their report on a new clean page, which he said will be



attached to the logbook in place of the lost page.

According to Mr. Del Mundo, he was asked by Mr. Pablo to come in to the Security
Division office on October 5, his day off, where the latter informed him that the page
where his report was written was missing. At first, Mr. Del Mundo refused. He said
that, being a criminologist, he thought that the document will be put in question

because its texture was different from the rest of the logbook.[1®] Eventually, Mr.
Del Mundo acceded to his superior's instructions and re-wrote his report.

On May 15, 2007, Atty. Candelaria submitted to the Chief Justice the Report and
Recommendation of the OAS, the pertinent portions of which read:

In conclusion, while this Office does not find any irregularity in the
restoration of the lost page, the same is not tantamount to saying that
Mr. Pablo is at all free of the reprove that the Court ought to give him. As
Chief of the Security Division, he has the duty to report all instances of
losses and all information pertaining thereto.

The loss of the page of the logbook aptly demonstrates a security lapse.
It indicates ineptness in the general implementation of security measures
within the Court, which matter, as stated, should be Mr. Pablo's utmost
concern. In the first place, the fact that it could have been perpetrated by
some disgruntled security personnel cannot be gainsaid since the logbook
was under the Security Division's custody whose primary duty is about
safety and security.

The claim that the restoration of the report is done in good faith and not
tainted with bad faith is of no moment because he was made to explain
on his failure to report the matter to this Office. Moreover, since the
report of Mr. Del Mundo alleged another loss of electrical wire which
draws out an issue and raises doubt on the motive of the loss of the said
page of the report, the issue could have been easily resolved if the report
of Mr. Del Mundo had been kept intact. Mr. Pablo, in his explanation,
ordered the restoration without conducting first an investigation.

In fine, although negligence could not be ascribed to a specific guard or
guards, this is not without stating the Security Division is completely
blameless for what occurred.

For want of proof to support the irregularity on the restoration, this Office
finds no prima facie case against Mr. Pablo. This Office believes that the
changes did not cause substantial deviation from the content of Mr. Del
Mundo's original report. However, for Mr. Pablo's failure to exert effort to
conduct an investigation on the loss of the page containing Mr. Del
Mundo's report and his failure to make a report on the matter, [he] has
to be warned for such failure.

With respect to Mr. Fajardo, his explanation although well-taken, has to
be advised to be more circumspect in the performance of his duty.

In connection with the order of Mr. Lastica in re-assigning Mr. Fajardo to
another post that left the Taft-Faura post unguarded, regardless of



whether or not the theft occurred at that time, this Office recommends
that he should likewise be advised of the need to take precautionary
measures in similar instances in order to prevent similar incident[s] in
the future. In this connection, this Office believes that the matter is
already being addressed by the on-going hiring or filling-up of security
guards positions to augment their number and reinforce their visibility.

In view of the foregoing, this Office respectfully recommends for the
following which will form part of their respective 201 Files in this Office:

1. Mr. Danilo C. Pablo for his failure to conduct and make a report
about the missing page of the logbook containing Mr. Juan
Espuerta, Jr. and Mr. Eligio Del Mundo's reports, be WARNED for
such failure;

2. Mr. Fernando Lastica, for making a re-assignment without taking
precautionary measures which exposed to security risk the Taft-
Faura post, be WARNED to be more circumspect in the performance
of his duty;

3. Mr. Michael Fajardo, be REMINDED of his duty to make a report
on all incidents that he may encounter in his tour of duty; and

4. Engr. Bernardito Bundoc, be ADVISED of the need to remove the
unnecessary wire, cable, or installation of whatever kind when the
use of such installation is finished in order to prevent its theft or

pilferage.[17]

The recommendations of the OAS for the Security Division to adopt stricter
precautionary measures are well-taken. However, we find the recommended
penalties too light in view of the circumstances. The security personnel in this case
fell short of the strict and rigorous standards required of all security officers in the

Judiciary.[18]

The loss of electrical wires reported on September 27, 2006 is undisputed. Yet,
despite the investigations conducted by the Security Division and the CID, no
substantial finding was made. The chances of finding the perpetrators at this point
are very slim. As to the September 30 incident, since there was no action on the
matter, it cannot now be established if there was, in fact, another incidence of theft.
As the OAS report points out, no culpability for such losses can be attributed to any
specific personnel of the Security Division in either case.

Nonetheless, we consider these incidents indicative of serious lapses in the Court's
over-all security. The Court cannot condone or close its eyes to transgressions of
duty on the part of judicial personnel which, even if unintended, could have been

avoided with the exercise of requisite care.[1°]

Every employee of the Judiciary should be an example of integrity, uprightness, and
honesty. Their conduct must not only be characterized by propriety and decorum but

above all else must be above suspicion at all times.[20]

As officers of the Court, security personnel are duty-bound to perform their duties



